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“This is none other but the house of God, 
And this is the gate of heaven” 

Genesis 28:17 

St. John’s was founded in 1875 and this church building was erected in 1893–1894. The architect was an 
English-born American, Frederick Clarke Withers (1828-1901). He designed many Gothic Revival 
buildings. Two of  his best known works are in New York City: the high altar and reredos (altar screen) 
at Trinity Church, Wall Street, and the Jefferson Market Library in Greenwich Village. His prototypes for 
St. John’s were 13th century English country churches. The chancel of  the Church of  the Transfiguration 
in Manhattan, better known as “The Little Church Around the Corner,” was designed by Withers. It is 
likely that through Transfiguration, Withers came to the attention of  Sarah Titus Zabriskie, the donor of  
this church building. Her mother, Sarah Jane Zabriskie, was a member and neighbor of  Transfiguration. 
The founding recot or that church, Father George Hendric Houghton (1820–1897) in fact preached the 
sermon at the consecration of  St. John’s in November, 1894. 

(1) This tour begins outside at the entrance. The exterior of  the church is rock faced tan granite 
trimmed with brown sandstone. As you walk through the church you will see that it is full of  symbolism 
intended to teach and inspire. Like many churches, St. John’s has a cruciform floor plan which is 
evocative of  the crucified Christ. While many explanations are given for why church doors are red, 
according to one tradition, the red doors represent the wounded feet of  the Savior.

Our patron St. John is an Evangelist, that is, one of  the four Gospel writers, and an apostle. On 
the fa ade there are two images which call him to mind. One is the eagle in the tympanum over the 
doors. The eagle is one of  the traditional symbols of  St. John. As an eagle soars, so do St. John’s Biblical 
writings soar to theological heights. The other is a statue in the niche above the eagle depicting John 
as an old man.

(2) Enter the doors of  the church. The small entrance porch (the narthex) is lit by four small stained 
glass windows depicting the patron saints of  the British Isles: St. Alban (England), St. Columba 
(Scotland), St. Patrick (Ireland), and St. David (Wales). On either side of  the front doors are portraits 
of  Stephen B. Luce and Alfred Thayer Mahan, the first two presidents of  the Naval War College, 
both of  whom served on the Vestry (the governing body) of  St. John’s in its earliest years. It was Alfred 
Thayer Mahan who introduced Sarah Titus Zabriskie to our second rector (1891-1897), Father Edward 
L. Buckey, which resulted in this magnificent edifice.

“He saith unto them, Come and see.”  
John 1:39 

(3) Go through the next set of  doors to the main body of  the church. This is called the nave (from 
the Latin navis or ship). Note the timber ceiling is shaped like the hull of  a ship, symbolizing that the 
church is a place of  voyage to God and the “ark of  salvation.” Turn around and look at the inscription 
above the doors. It reads: 

TO THE GLORY OF GOD  
AND IN MEMORY OF  

SARAH JANE ZABRISKIE  
THIS CHURCH IS ERECTED BY  

HER DAUGHTER  
ANNO DOMINI MDCCCXCIV 

On the left is the monogram “SJZ” for Sarah Jane Zabriskie and on the right, “STZ” for Sarah Titus 
Zabriskie, the donor. 



(4) Baptism is the entrance to the Christian Church, and here the baptismal font has been placed near 
the entrance doors. The font is carved from French Caen limestone and is crowned with a wood carving 
of  St. John the Baptist as a child. Behind it the painting is by a parishioner Lydia Redmond (1888–
1924). The subjects are the infant Jesus; his mother, the Virgin Mary; and Mary’s mother, St. Anne. 

Note the window above, which recalls the Wedding Feast at Cana. The windows throughout the 
church were manufactured by various firms in Britain and in America and are a textbook of  stained glass 
window design from the late 19th century through the mid 20th century.

The Stations of  the Cross here and throughout the church (fourteen in all) are from Belgium. The 
media used are paint on tin.

(5) The bell tower houses a peal of  bells rung daily on the hour and half-hour between 7 a.m. and 10 
p.m. At seven, noon, and six, it rings the Angelus, a traditional devotional prayer to the Virgin Mary. On 
Sundays, it rings ten minutes prior to Mass to call the faithful to prayer. 

(6) This stained glass window between the third and fourth stations of  the Cross is dedicated to the 
Transfiguration. Jesus is pictured on the left and Moses and Elijah on the right. 

(7) The Last Supper is the subject of  the window between the first and second stations of  the Cross. 

(8) The north alcove is separated from the 
nave by a pillar. The capital of  this column 
is carved from stone from Whitby Abbey, 
North Yorkshire, England. The capital’s 
niche holds an Early Medieval statue of  
the Madonna and Child from the Abbey of  
Clermont-Ferrand in France.

Opposite the column there is an Italian Crèche. 
It was a gift to the parish in 1914. Many of  
the figures inside date to the 17th century. 
The Crèche is normally open only in the 
winter, but photographs of  its contents may 
be seen at tinyurl.com/saintjohns-creche. 

There are shrines on either side of  the 
north alcove dedicated to King Charles 
the Martyr (1600–1649) and to St. John 
the Evangelist. Both are the work of  
Philadelphia artist Davis d’Ambly. Above 
the figure of  St. John in the shrine next to 
the pulpit is the emblem of  a snake and 
a chalice, another traditional symbol of  St. 
John, deriving from a non-Biblical story of  
how an assassination attempt was made on 
John’s life by poisoning his cup. When John 
blessed the wine, the poison emerged in the 
form of  a snake and slithered off, and the 
saint drank the wine unharmed. 

The Wedding Feast at Cana  
John 2:1-11

“And the third day there was a marriage in Cana 
of Galilee; and the mother of Jesus was there: 
And both Jesus was called, and his disciples, to 
the marriage. And when they wanted wine, the 
mother of Jesus saith unto him, They have no 
wine. Jesus saith unto her, ‘Woman, what have 
I to do with thee? Mine hour is not yet come’. 
His mother saith unto the servant, Whatsoever 
he saith unto you, do it. And there were set 
there six waterpots of stone, after the manner 
of purifying of the Jews, containing two or three 
firkins apiece. Jesus saith unto them, Fill the 
waterports with water. And they filled them up 
to the brim. And he saith unto them, Draw out 
now, and bear unto the governor of the feast. 
And they bear it. When the ruler of the feast 
had tasted the water made wine, and knew not 
whence it was: (but the servants which drew the 
water knew;) the governor of the feast called the 
bridegroom, And he saith unto him, Every man 
at the beginning doth set forth good wine; and 
when men have well drunk, then that which is 
worse: but thou hast kept the good wine until 
now. This beginning of miracles did Jesus in 
Cana of Galilee, and manifested forth his glory; 
and his disciples believed on him.” 



Another d’Ambly work, next to the King Charles shrine, is the Columbarium, which houses the 
ashes of  the departed. The columbarium is surmounted by an emblem of  the phoenix in flames, a 
mythological creature that has been adopted as a Christian symbol of  the Resurrection. As the phoenix 
rises again from the ashes, this image symbolizes our hope in the resurrection of  the dead. Inquiries are 
welcome from those who might want to have ashes placed here. 

To the left of  the St. John shrine there is a statue of  Our Lady of  Walsingham. In 1061, the pious 
Englishwoman Richeldis de Faverches, living in the village of  Walsingham in Norfolk, had a vision of  
the Nazareth house of  the Holy Family: Jesus, Mary, and Joseph. She built a replica of  the house in 
Walsingham, which became known as “England’s Nazareth.” Many of  those who could not journey to 
the Holy Land were pilgrims to Walsingham. To this day, Walsingham remains a place of  pilgrimage. 

The organ chamber is also seen here. This instrument is an 1894 Hook and Hastings organ. It 
contains 1,769 pipes, the largest being 16 feet long and the smallest but one-half  inch. 

There are two stained glass windows in the alcove on either side of  the Crèche: The Resurrection is on 
the left, and on the right we see Jesus appearing to his Disciples at the Sea of  Tiberias. 

(9) The Rood Screen at the crossing was dedicated in the 1920’s as a memorial to our third rector 
(1898-1919), Father Charles Frederick Beattie, who died in office. Above the screen is a polychrome 
carving of  the crucified Christ flanked by the Blessed Virgin Mary (to Jesus’ right, the viewer’s left) 
and St. John the Beloved Disciple (to Jesus’ left, the viewer’s right). Note that because John is depicted 
without a beard, he is often mistaken for a woman. 

At the base of  the pulpit is a statue of  St. Augustine of  Canterbury (d. 604), who was the “apostle to 
the English.” 

The screen stands between the nave and the chancel (from the Latin cancellus or lattice work which 
separates the two). The choir stalls are on either side. The Choir School of  Newport County sings 
here: www.thechoirschoolri.org. Beyond the chancel is the sanctuary. And so the church is divided 
into three spaces which are symbolic of  the Universal or Catholic Church: the nave (the Church 
militant here on earth), the chancel (the Church departed and expectant), and the sanctuary (the Church 
triumphant in paradise). 

The Transfiguration  
Luke 9:28-31

“And it came to pass about an eight days after these sayings, he took Peter and John and 
James, and went up into a mountain to pray. And as he prayed, the fashion of his countenance 
was altered, and his raiment was white and glistering. And, behold, there talked with him two 
men, which were Moses and Elias: Who appeared in glory, and spake of his decease which he 
should accomplish at Jerusalem.”

The Last Supper  
Mark 14:22-24

“And as they did eat, Jesus took bread, and blessed, and brake it, and gave to them, and said, 
Take, eat: this is my body. And he took the cup, and when he had given thanks, he gave it to 
them: and they all drank of it. And he said unto them, This is my blood of the new testament, 
which is shed for many.”



(10) The Lady Shrine on the right side of  
the Rood Screen was created in the studio of  
M. Wispalaer in Bruges, Belgium in 1929. It 
was given by the fourth rector (1919-1929), 
Father Julian D. Hamlin, in memory of  his 
mother, who was named Mary. Later the 
same year, Father Hamlin accepted the call to 
become rector of  the Church of  the Advent 
on Beacon Hill in Boston, the flagship 
Anglo-Catholic parish of  New England. 
Father Hamlin was responsible in 1922 
for purchasing the rectory on the corner 
of  Washington & Poplar, Dennis House 
(c. 1740), and the house between it and 
the Guild Hall, which was named Grafton 
House in honor of  the founding rector of  
the Church of  the Advent, Charles Chapman 
Grafton, who went on to be the 2nd Bishop 
of  Fond du Lac, Wisconsin. Bishop Grafton 
founded the Sisters of  the Holy Nativity. 
The sisters established a mission house on 
Washington Street and taught Sunday School 
in Grafton House for many years. 

(11) The High Altar is a single block of  pure 
white Italian marble. The reredos behind 
it is carved Caen stone from Normandy. 
The cross and candlesticks are the work 
of  Newport artist John Howard Benson 
(1901-1956). The window above depicts The 
Ascension of  Our Lord. In the stained 
glass window on the left of  the altar, we see 
St. John the Divine on the Isle of  Patmos 
inspired by an angel to write his Apocalypse, 
the Book of  Revelation. Note the eagle at his 
feet, identifying him as the same person as 
John as the Evangelist. 

Turn around to see the window over the 
entrance doors. It depicts Jesus calling his 
Apostles Peter, James, and John. 

(12) This memorial plaque honors parish 
members who were killed in World War I. 

Turn around to see the cabinet. It is crafted 
from quarter-sawn white oak and embellished with wrought iron. Above, from left to right, there are 
depicted a bishop, a priest, a deacon, a subdeacon, and two acolytes. The lock is flanked by two symbols 
of  St. John the Evangelist: the eagle on the left and, on the right, a poisonous snake emerging from a 

The Resurrection  
John 20:11-16

“But Mary stood without at the sepulchre 
weeping: and as she wept, she stooped down, 
and looked into the sepulchre. And seeth two 
angels in white sitting, the one at the head, and 
the other at the feet, where the body of Jesus 
had lain. And they said unto her, Woman, why 
weepest thou? She saith unto them, Because 
they have taken away my Lord, and I know 
not where they have laid him. And when she 
had thus said, she turned herself back, and 
saw Jesus standing, and and knew not that it 
was Jesus. Jesus saith unto her, Woman, why 
weepest thou? Whom sleekest thou? She, 
supposing him to be the gardener, saith unto 
him, Sir, if thou have bourne him hence, tell me 
where thou hast laid him, and I will take him 
away. Jesus saith unto her, Mary. She turned 
herself, and saith unto him, Raboni; which is 
Master.”

Jesus at the Sea of Tiberias  
John 21:1-7

“After these things Jesus shewed himself 
again to the disciples at the sea of Tiberias; 
and on this wise shewed he himself. There 
were together Simon Peter, and Thomas called 
Didymus, and Nathanael of Cana in Galilee, 
and the sons of Zebedee, and two other of 
his disciples. Simon Peter saith unto them, I 
go a fishing. They say unto him, We also go 
with thee. They went forth, and entered into a 
ship immediately; and that night they caught 
nothing. But when the morning was now come, 
Jesus stood on the shore; but the disciples 
knew not that it was Jesus. Then saith Jesus 
unto them, Children, have ye any meat? They 
answered him, No. And he said unto them, Cast 
the net on the right side of the ship, and ye shall 
find. They cast therefore, and now they were 
not able to draw it for the multitude of fishes. 
Therefore that disciple whom Jesus loved saith 
unto Peter, It is the Lord.”



chalice. Below on the left door we see an altar, a tabernacle door, and a coffin covered with a pall. In the 
lower portion of  the right door three vestments are seen: a bishop’s miter, a stole, and an amice (neck cloth).

(13) The Chapel of  the Blessed Sacrament is used daily throughout the year for Morning Prayer, 
Evening Prayer, and Low Masses. It was given in 1913 by Mrs. Sidney Webster (Sarah Morris Fish 
Webster) as a memorial to her husband. Sidney Webster served as private secretary to President Franklin 
Pierce and was a noted constitutional law expert. This chapel was designed by architect Ralph Adams 
Cram (1863–1942), whose best known works are Saint Thomas Church Fifth Avenue and the nave 
of  the Cathedral Church of  St. John the Divine, both in New York City. His other Aquidneck Island 
commissions are Emmanuel Church, Newport and the Chapel of  St. George at St. George’s School in 
Middletown. The tabernacle and candlesticks were designed by Durr Freedley (see below), who also 
designed matching flower vases and a missal stand, which are brought out when needed. The tabernacle 
is gold and polychrome intaglio. The figures of  Jesus, Mary and John on the tabernacle, the symbols 
of  the four Evangelists upon which it rests, and the angels bearing the altar candlesticks are all the 
work of  Paul Manship (1885–1966), who is most famous for his sculpture “Prometheus” that presides 
over the ice rink at Rockefeller Center in Manhattan. The woodwork throughout was hand carved by 

The Ascension  
Luke 24:50-53

“And he led them out as far as to Bethany, and he lifted up his hands, and blessed them. And 
it came to pass, while he blessed them, he was parted from them, and carried up into heaven. 
And they worshiped him, and returned to Jeruslaem with great joy: And were continually in the 
temple, praising and blessing God. Amen”

St. John on Patmos  
Revelation 1:1-3

“The Revelation of Jesus Christ, which God gave unto him, to shew unto his servants things 
which must shortly come to pass; and he sent and signified it by his angel unto his servant John. 
Who bare record of the word of God, and of the testimony of jesus Christ, and of all things that 
he saw. Blessed is he that readeth, and they that hear the words of this prophesy, and keep those 
things which are written therein: for the time is at hand.”

The Call of Peter, James, and John  
Luke 5:4-11

“Now when he had left speaking, he said unto Simon, launch out into the deep, and let down 
your nets for a draught. And Simon answering said unto him, Master, we have toiled all the 
night, and have taken nothing: nevertheless at thy word I will let down the net. And when they 
had this done, they inclosed a great multitude of fishes: and their net brake. And they beckoned 
unto their partners, which were in the other ship, that they should come and help them. And 
they came, and filled both the ships, so that they began to sink. When Simon Peter saw it, he 
fell down at Jesus’ kness, saying, ‘Depart from me; for I am a sinful man, O Lord. For he was 
astonished, and all that were with him, at the draught of the fishes which were taken: And so also 
James, and john, the sons of Zebedee, which were partners with Simon. And Jesus said unto 
Simon, Fear not; from henceforth thou shalt catch men. And when they had brought their ships 
to land, they forsook all, and followed him.”



Angelo Lualdi and the egg tempera painting 
spanning the reredos is the work of  Sister 
Mary Veronica, a member of  the Episcopal 
Community of  St. Mary. It is a depiction of  
the Throne of  God as described by St. John 
in the Book of  Revelation.

A word about the stained glass in this 
chapel. The window to the right of  the 
altar was designed by artist Durr Freedley 
(1888–1938), Curator of  Decorative Arts at 
New York’s Metropolitan Museum of  Art. 
Below is the Old Testament High Priest 
Melchizedek who offered bread and wine as 
a sacrifice to God. In similar manner, Christ 
the Great High Priest (pictured above) 
offered bread and wine (his Body and Blood) 
as a sacrifice. 

The other chapel window is dedicated to the Annunciation. This is the first in a series of  windows re-
telling chapters in the life of  Jesus. Subsequent events in his life are depicted in glass down the south 
aisle and around the church to his glorious Ascension (as seen over the High Altar). 

(14) This is the last of  the fourteen Stations of  the Cross recounting the steps of  Jesus to his death on 
Mount Calvary.

(15) The Nativity of  Our Lord is shown in the stained glass window between the fourteenth and 
thirteenth stations of  the Cross. 

The Throne of God  
Revelation 7:9-12

“And after this I beheld, and lo, a great multitude, 
which no man could number, of  all nations, and 
kindreds, and people, and tongues, stood before the 
throne, and before the Lamb, clothed with white robes, 
and palms in their hands; And cried with a loud voice, 
saying, Salvation to our God which sitteth upon the 
throne, and unto the Lamb. And all the angels stood 
round about the throne, and about the elders, and the 
four beasts, and fell before the throne on their faces, 
and worshipped God, Saying, Amen, Blessing, and 
glory, and wisdom, and thanksgiving, and honour, and 
power, and might be unto our God for ever and ever. 
Amen”

Melchizidek 
“And Melchizedek king of Salem brought forth bread and wine: and he was priest of the most 
high God.”(Genesis 14:18)

“For he testifieth, Thou art a priest for ever after the order of Melchisedec.” (Hebrews 7:17)

The Annunciation  
JLuke 1:26-33

“And in the sixth month the angel Gabriel was sent from God unto a city of Galilee, named 
Nazareth. To a virgin espoused to a man whose name was Joseph, of the house of David; and the 
virgin’s name was Mary. And the angel came unto her, and said, Hail, thou that art highly favored, 
the Lord is with thee: blessed art thou among women. And when she saw him, she was troubled 
at his saying, and cast in her mind what manner of salutation this should be. And the angel said 
unto her, Fear not, Mary: for thou hast found favor with God. And, behold, thou shalt conceive in 
thy womb, and bring forth a son, and shalt call his name JESUS. He shall be great, and shall be 
calles the Son of the Highest: and the Lord God shall give unto him the throne of his father David: 
And he shall reign over the house of Jacob for ever; and of his kingdom there shall be no end.”



(16) The twelfth station in particular has 
attracted some notice, as a reddish stain runs 
as if  from the bleeding feet of  Jesus on the 
cross and down the wall. Despite removing it 
several times, it has always reappeared. Some 
pious observers have interpreted this stain as 
a tangible reminder that Jesus’ death on the 
cross is an event that transcends time and space. 
Depicted between the twelfth and eleventh 
stations are the Presentation of  Christ and 
Purification of  the Virgin Mary.

(17) Christ teaching in the temple is the 
subject of  the window next to the tenth station. 

(18) The confessional is a relatively recent 
addition, placed opposite the font. Just as 
the Church proclaims one baptism for the 
remission of  sins, those sins that we commit 
after baptism may be absolved through 
confession, either to a priest in the rite of  
reconciliation, or in the context of  the General 
Confession in the Mass itself. If  you would like 
to arrange for either a baptism or the sacrament 
of  reconciliation, please contact the rector. 

Above the confessional, the stained glass 
shows the Baptism of  Our Lord in the River 
Jordan. Jesus is depicted on the left and St. 
John the Baptist on the right. 

We hope that this tour has been both 
informative and inspiring. Before leaving, 
please sign the Guest Register located behind 
the last pew. If  you leave your email, we will 
subscribe you to a weekly Friday email 
announcing special services and events, 
as well as other news about the parish. You 
may unsubscribe at any time, and your contact 
information will not be shared beyond the 
parish. And please return! There is a place for 
you at St. John’s Church. 

“Lord, I have loved the habitation of thy house,  
And the place where thine honour dwelleth.” 

Psalm 27:8

The Nativity  
Luke 2:1-7

And it came to pass in those days, that there 
went out a decree from Caesar Augustus, that 
all the world should be taxed. And all went 
to be taxed, every one to his own city. And 
Joseph also went up from Galilee, out of the 
city of Nazareth, into Judaea, unto the city of 
David, which is called Bethlehem; (because 
he was of the house and lineage of David) To 
be taxed with Mary his espoused wife, being 
great with child. And so it was, that, while 
they were there, the days were accomplished 
that she should be delivered. And she 
brought forth her firstborn son, and wrapped 
him in swaddling clothes, and laid him in a 
manger; because there was no room for them 
in the inn.”

The Presentation & Purification  
Luke 2:22

“And when the days of her purification 
according to the law of Moses were 
accomplished, they brought him to 
Jerusalem, to present him to the Lord.”

Jesus in the Temple  
Luke 2:44-47

“And it came to pass, that after three days 
they found him in the temple, sitting in the 
midst of the doctors, both hearing them, and 
asking them questions. And all that heard him 
were astonished at his understanding and 
answers.”

The Baptism of Jesus  
Mark:1-9

“And it came to pass in those days, that 
Jesus came from Nazareth of Galilee and was 
baptized of John in Jordan.”



THE ZABRISKIE MEMORIAL CHURCH OF 
SAINT JOHN THE EVANGELIST 

Newport, Rhode Island 

Welcome to St. John’s Church! We are an Anglo-Catholic parish in the Episcopal Diocese of  Rhode 
Island and a member of  the world-wide Anglican Communion. Our Sunday services are at 8 a.m. & 10 
a.m., and we have brief  prayer services at 8:30 a.m. and 5:30 p.m. Monday through Friday. 

From our very beginnings, we had our roots in the Anglo-Catholic revival. The following summary, 
adapted and edited with permission from the website of  St. Paul’s, Seattle, Washington, gives a good 
sense of  what this particular tradition within the Episcopal Church values. 

As Anglo-Catholics, our ultimate worship experience is one in which we not only glimpse but enter into 
and taste something of  the beauty and mystery of  God. The following are elements that exist in many 
Anglo-Catholic parishes: 

Sacramental: An emphasis on the sacraments of  Baptism, Eucharist, Holy Unction (anointing with oil 
for healing), and Reconciliation (confession and absolution) as a part of  the rhythm of  a holy life. 

Prayerful: Holiness of  life is seen as a process in which we engage in prayer on a daily basis, and which 
expresses itself  in weekly and yearly cycles of  prayer within the church. Anglo-Catholics make use of  a 
variety of  devotional practices that assist them in prayer. 

Surrounded by a Great Cloud of  Witnesses: Anglo-Catholics believe in the reality of  the Communion 
of  Saints. We believe that we have seen true sanctity in the lives of  many women and men in the history 
of  the church, up to the present day. We especially honor the Virgin Mary, the mother of  Jesus, as one 
whose life witnessed to God’s grace. 

Reverential, Expressed through Music, the Senses and the Body: Anglo-Catholics emphasize 
sharing the divine life in a deeply reverent style of  worship. We are drawn to liturgy that emphasizes 
adoration. We enter into this adoration through listening to and singing beautiful music, chanting, the 
use of  gesture and embodied prayer (genuflection, bowing, crossing oneself) and the engagement of  
the senses (incense, baptismal water, bells, beautiful vestments, etc.). As Anglo-Catholics, our ultimate 
worship experience is one in which we not only glimpse but enter into and taste something of  the beauty 
and mystery of  God. 

Committed to Beauty and Justice Together: Anglo-Catholics emphasize social justice out of  a 
tradition that makes a concrete connection between worshiping God in beauty and holiness, and working 
to manifest God’s justice and mercy in the world. For Anglo-Catholics, beautiful liturgy leads us into 
a divine life that celebrates the dignity of  human beings. Out of  this experience, our call is to work to 
create a world that acknowledges and advances the dignity of  all. 

With this in mind, we hope you enjoy this self-guided tour of  St. John’s. Throughout this tour there are 
references to Scripture. Quotations related to the tour are included, and copies of  the Holy Bible are in 
the pews for your convenience.



Postscript: The Lay Founder of  St. John’s 

Saint John’s began meeting in the Third Street home 
of  Peter and Harriet Quire in 1875. Peter Quire had 
worked with the Quakers in Philadelphia on the 
Underground Railroad prior to moving to the Point, 
a neighborhood first settled by the Quakers in the 
Colonial era. By the end of  1875, the congregation 
had built its first church, now used as our Guild Hall. 

From its very beginning, many of  the members 
were of  modest means, though supported by the 
generosity of  some of  Newport’s more famous 
residents, including the Astors and the Chanlers. As 
noted above, the church also had an early connection 
with the Naval War College, two of  whose founders 
served on the vestry. (Their portraits are in the 
narthex.) 

St. John’s carries on Peter Quire and Sarah Titus 
Zabriskie’s legacies today as we continue to gather 
and serve all sorts and conditions in the beauty of  
holiness. 

Second Edition, June 2018
On the cover: The Zabriskie Memorial Church of  Saint John the Evangelist, 1923. 
Pen and ink by John Howard Benson (1901-1956).
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portraits are in the narthex.) 
 
St. John’s carries on Peter Quire and Sarah Titus 
Zabriskie’s legacies today as we continue to gather 
and serve all sorts and conditions in the beauty of 
holiness. 
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